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INITIAL DECISION

By Complaint filed June 18, 1979, and subsequently amended on )
September 14, 1979, the U.S. Envirosmenta) Protection Agency (Complainant)
charged Honty's Enviroument31x5ervices, Inc. (hereinafter Fonty's) with
violation of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act, as
Amended (7 U.S.C. 136 - 136{y} (1978}) herein referred to as FIFRA, alleging
that Respondent produced and, on June 13, 1979, neld for sale at its place
of business its product “The Eliminator", allegedly a “"device" as defined
by Section 2{n}, 7 U.5.C. 136(h), which devica was misbrandad in tuai the

label theraon bears statements which are, in fact, false, Said statements

are listed in subject Complaint as follows:

{a) controls rats and mice;
(b} also ielps control roaches and silverfish;

{e) creates nervous disorientation in certain lower
animals and tonereby brings about their death;

(d) effective control of pests;

{e) proved effective in grain elevators, feed Tots.

Said Complaint further states Respondent nas therevy violated

Section 12(a)(1}(F}, 7 U.S.C. 136j(a)(1}(F), wnicn provides as follows:

“Section 12. UNLAWFUL ACTS.
“{a) 1o general.--

"(1) Except as provided by suwsection {b), it shall
ve unlawful for any person in any State to
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distribute, sell, offer for sale, hold for
sale, saip, deliver for saipment, or receive
and (naving so received) daliver or offer to
deliver, to any person--

any device waicn is mishranded."

Section 2{q)}(1{A) defines “misbranded®, providing:

“(1)
“(A)

A pesticide is misbranded if--

its laoeling bears any statewment, design, or
graphic representation relatjve thereto or
ta its ingredients which is false or mis-
leading in any particular;”

L)

Section 2{p) defines LABEL and LABELING as follows:

u(])

“(2)

LABEL. ~~Tie term 'label’ means the written,
printad, or graphic matter on, or attached
to, tie pesticide or device or any of its
containers or wrappers.

LABELING.--The terw ‘Tabeling' means all labeis
and all other written, printed, or grapiic
mattar--

"{A) accompanying the pesticide or device at
any time; or

“{B) to waica reference is made on the laoel
or in literzture accompanying tie
pesticide ar device..."

Section 2(i) d2fining “"device" states:

"(n}

DEVICE.--Tie term 'device' means any instrument
or contrivance (other than a firearm} wnich is
intended for trapping, destroying, repelling,
or mitigating any pest or otiher form of plant
or animal life..."

On or about June 28, 1979 Respondent filed its answer to the

Complaint winich admits that on or about June 13, 1979, it produced and

held for sale "Tae Eliminator” at its place of business in Houston, Texas;

denies that said product is a device under said Section 2{n); and denjes

-

that "said device" is misbranded, 3aid answer also alleges the following:

~ "Based upon Monty's own examinations, testing, actual
field experience, and the experience of customzrs of Monty's,
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said device does, through tne dissemination of elactromagnetic

radiation, ward off and repel rats from an area of 150 foot radius

‘from tne position at wiicn the device is placed. Monty's

denies that its “lavel on said device" bears statements tnat

its prodguct will kill rodents...".

Complainant, at the Hearing nerain held in Houston, Te;as‘un
Wednesday, September 19, 1979, stated in tihe record (T. 5) as a pre]im—
inary statement, tnat the sole issue to be here determined is tie
" efficacy of Monty's device "The Eliminator" in the control and killing
of rodents and insects. The parties have stipulated that, if Complainant's
position is sustained, an appropriate civil penalty under tie civil
penalities assessment guidelines is $1,250.00.  Honty‘s (T. 6 and 7)
agreed tnat Complainant counsel had stated tha "core issue" and tnat the
evidance at the hearing is concernad “alimost solely witn the issue of
the efficacy of tne tool". Honty's, nouwever, indicated'tiat it would,
in its proposed findings, conclusions, brief and argument, urge the
‘determination herein of whether a stoa sale, use and removal order,
dated June 13, 1979 (Compiainant Exaibit 4} was validly issuaed, As said
Exhibit 4 recites, on its face, that it is premised on Monty's violation
of Section 12(a){V)(F), decision on the sole or core issue will be

determinative of tie further issue urged by Monty's.

Complainant’s Exnibit 2 {pages 3 and 4} is a brochure obtained
by Witness James S, Halliday,Il, from one Larry Streck, a chemist with
the U.5. Environmental Protection Agency in Houston, Texas. At the. time.
he turned over the brochure to the witness, Streck stated that it had been
obtained from a booth lTocated in the Astrohall during a Livestock Show
on February 25, 1979. The brociure {page 4) lists tie name and address
and telephone number of ”Monty'sf along with the following statement:

-

“The Eliminator, from Monty's Environmental Services, Inc.,
is & revolutionary electronic device to ceontrol rats, mice
and many insect pests--without poisons,
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“"The pest does not have to come in direct contact with
thesinstrunient. Its effegtive range is up to 150' radius,
it can be adapted for AC or battery operation, and is
water-proofed for outdoor instaliation,

“Simply stated, the eliminator crezates a mild magnetic
field which is absoiutely harnless to humans and domestic *
anwmals. but which creates nervous disorientation in
certain lower animals and insects and thereoy brings about
their death.

“This means, for tie first time you can have effective
control of pests around your farm, business, or home
witnout the dangers or continuing expeanse of poisons
and traps.

L]
"The Eliminator has been proved effective in grain elevators,
feedlots, restaurants, and otner places which often nave .
difficult pest contro) problems.

"Eliminate poisons, and coatrol pests. Get tne Eliminator.
Hodel 500 now available. $5006.00."

fonty's Exnibit B (T. 70} is a brochure describing "The

LY

Eliminator" and states, (front side):

“Tae tliminator HOW COATROLS RATS AdD HICE WITHOUT PDISGIS.
PERIQD."

Tne second paragraph states furtier:

"You can eliminate the problem in your area with THE
ELIMIAATOR by Monty, Rodent Controller...The cne from
Monty Environmental Services, Inc., tinat has been
developed tarougn documented scientific research. Tne
one that controls rat and mice 1nfestat10n, continually
without poisons.

And on the back side of said Exhibit 8 (T. 70 and 71):

YSimply stated, the Eliminator by Morty, Rodent Controller,
creates a magnetic field witn totally randon pulsations
which is absoiutely narmlass to humans and domestic
animals, but wnich creates nervous disorientation in rats
and mice and tihereby brings about their continual elimi-
nation in the affected area."

The brochure continues with representation tinat the described

device can furnish effective control of rats and mice.
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Monty's Exhibit A {also jdentified and received as Complainant's

Exhipit 10) is a letter dated iay 9, 1979, addressed to Michael Wood of

the US £PA from Charles C. Gordon of tne {lational Bureau of Standards {i{BS)

in Washington, D.C. WMr. Gordon appearad and testified at the Hearing.

Said letter reports that NBS conducted a limited examination of subject

pest control device (EPA Sample No. 150198). The back of the unit was

removed for interpal examination and its components noted, Tne output of
tﬁe unjt, powered by 112 volt, 60 Hz to 12 velt dc, “apparently drives a
single coil wound on a ferrous rod of about 1/2-inch diameter and 4-incies
in length." Wien examined\with a COmpass, a w;ak electromagnetic field
(EMF) was detected. Tne field strength decreased rapidly witn distance
from the unit and would vary inversely wita the distance cubed (1/d3)

from the unit. At a distance of one meter, the EMF from the unit is

much Jess than the earths field (0.5 gauss). Tnese findings are not

inconsistent with tihe Technical Report of Dr. Robert Benson who tested

The Eliminator {Medel 600) (Monty's Exhibit C).

It was further noted that the internal companents indicate
similarity to the iagna-Pulse and Nature Shield devices {both of which
use three coils in a delta form) while subject unit uses a single coi]

as its output.

Mr. Gordon testified {(T. 105) that he examined 14 pest control
devices, furnished by US EPA, to investigate their electromagnetic
characteristics, and the magnitude of the electromagnetic radiation
(EMR). Of the units examined, eignt units produced EMR of a sinusoidal
format, that were driven from the normal wail plug, 115 voit, b0 cycles--
6? Hertz source. The others were battery-operated and were controlled
with digital circuitry and produced pulses and some steady-state field,

The latter units were examined for pulse output only. The Eliminator
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(3 models) was tested and determined to be in the latter pulse group
(Group one): as were two units prohuced by other companies, MHagna—Pulse
and Hature Shield, which have the sane nuimber and type of components as
The Eliminator. The components, observed in the aforementioned unils,
are not sophisticated but can be obtained in the market place. Gordon
testified, on cross examination, that the detected output--pulses--from
The Eliminator, Magna-Pulse and Hature Shield units was in the same order
of magnitude; when measured at a finite distance away, they produce
magnetic fields tnat ale of a low level, in the tenth gauss (0.1 gauss)
range; some variation can exist between the respective units in the%r
nulse-field output because the components used are comnonly plus or minus
20 percent in accuracy; because tie Magna-Pulse and Nature Shield units
were "potted" they were unable to determine whether or not a dc field

hY

existed from those units.

Witness Dr. Walter E, loward is a professor of wildlife biology
and nas been employed by the University of California at Davis for 32 years
in the field of rodent control. He agreed to test devices whose outpuis
vere electromagnetic fields, with the restriction that research by nim
and his colleagues be devoted to testing the principle and tie concept.
In this regard, his testimony stated (T. 144):

"1 did not want to get into testing equipment because

1've been through this before. They change thae name,

they change the label, they change one wire and you

have to go all through these expensive steps again.”

US EPA sent Dr. Howard electromagnetic devices sold for rodent
control which were tested biologically under extremely controlied condi-
tions involving wild rats--as distinguished from laboratory rats-- and
hhuse mice, trapped in the wild and then bred in the laboratory to
produce a population composed of a gene pool ihat wild animals have. Tne

experiments conducted by the witness, in collaboration with Mr. Rex E.
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Marsh resulted in tie submission by tnem of two reports: "Report of
Efficacy Studies of the Hature Shigld Rodent Contro) Device” (Complainant
Exhibit 11) and “Report of Efficacy Studies of tne Hagna-Pulse Rodent
Controt Device (Complainant Exnibit 12)}. Dr. Howard concluded (T. 151)
that nothing on the order of abnormal behavior was observed during the
course of their testing whicin they considered attributable to EWFs from
~the electronic devices. He considers all electromagnztic devices now on
the market to be worth}ess for the control of rodents in a warehouse,

house, fields or other locations (T. 152}, as tney have tested a broad
field of magnetic devices (7. 154). There is a natural fluctuation that
occurs in al) rodent popuiation and a decline at the time an EMF device
i5 installed might influence one to improperty conclude that such declinz
can be attributed to said davice. Uith the small magne?ic field
attriouted to The tliminator, Dr. Howard cencluded that the statement

containad in Fonty's brocinure {Complainant Exnibit 2, page 4) is "not

correct", (7. 180),

Br. Howard's Simutated Field Test, using & iature Shield device,
reported in Complainant Exitibit 11, supra, disputes the c¢laims of tne
Hature Shield brochure that "Contro-clusive magnetism® provides "null
effects in pest's nervous system eliminating the ability for normal
response system to register a survival reaction"; and the further claim
that the pest "shuts down--it stops eating, drinking, producing". In
contrast, his findings were that the test animals gained weight as their
food and water intake did not vary greatly; no abnormal behaviar was
observed; two female rats conceived after the device was “on" and bore

offspring though exposed to said device for approximately 23 days.

. Or. Reierson's report "Parformance of Electromagnetic Oevices
Against Termites, Cockroacies and Flour Beetles™ (Complainant Exnibit 13)

generally voices coaclusions such as those arrived at by Or, Howard. Ho

IIIlIlllIllllIIIIIIIlIlIlllll................................---:::____________¥




a——

———

-3 -

biological effects under laboratory or field conditions were abserved
with any of the devices tested and he therefore concluded that Magna-
Pulse, lature Siield and Sigma (all electromagnetic deyices) nhad no
measurable effect on any of the insects tested and that they would_nave

no effect on other structural or housenold insect pests.

Monty's witness Dr. Clifford J. Sherry is an assjstant pro-
fessor in the Biology Department of Texas ALM University. At the raquest
of tonty's he performed a ceries of tests involving The Eliminator, which
he referred to as 2 dev}ce cimilar to Complainant Exhibit 15. His study
over a total period of 66 days dealt with the effect of The Eliminator
on eating, drinking, aggressive pehavior and general activity of Long-
Evans hooded rats. He used two sets of cages. Each set of two cages
was connected togetner by hollow tubing. Each set of coges contained

three male animals. The experiment was 50 set up as an attempt to stress

‘the animais by housing them so tney would be required to go througn a

small tube just large enougn to allow passage of one animal at a time.
For one set of animais The Eliminator was present and turned on; for the
other set The Eliminator was present and turned off. The second set was
housed so as to eliminate the steady-state and pulsed magnetic field. He
observed an increase in aggressive behavior in both sets of animals, but
the increase “seemed to be larger in the experimental animals, the ones
exposed to The Eliminator". He acknowledged (T. 79) that being confined
in small spaces will, in and of itself, produce a response of heightened’
aggressive behavior; however, from observation, he noted a greater response
in the group in the box on which the subject device was turned on., One
such observation was rapid cannibalization even though food and water was
available whicih he interpreted as the result of increasad aggrassiveness.

a

No changes were noted in eating, drinking or in the level of general

activity. He concluded that it was not clear that the animals attempted
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to avoid the effects of The Eliminator; that the responses observed could
have been htlributab]e to some aspéct of their environment of whicn he was
unazare. Dr. Sherry did not know wnat caused the death of four experi-
mental animals, three of which were found in the shielded cage and one in
| the unshielded cage {Complainant Exnibit 16; T.94). Or. Sherry stated
- that due to the size of the sample used by him and the time length
of the tests conducted by nim, his findings were inconclusive (when
qdestioneq as to whether rits could be eliminated by use of subject y
device--The Eliminator). He further stated {(T. 100} tnat if it were

shown that The Eliminator does, in fact, increase aggressive behavior

in the test animals, he believes they would tend to aveid that situation.

= Monty's Exhibits D, E, F, G and H are 13 letters from purchasers
of "Tne Eliminator” who commend its use witn varying degrees of enthusiasm,

but who, in each instance give it a positive endorsement,

In consideration of the foreyoing, and based on the forinal

record made herein, 1 make the following
FINDIIIGS OF FACT

1. Honty's Environmental Services, Inc. (Monty's) is a Texas

corporation domiciled in Houston, Harris County, Texas (T. 4).

2. Monty's engages in the business of producing and selling
*The Eliminator", an electronic device manufactured by it to control rats,

mice and insect pests.

3. Monty's product, "The Eliminator"” is a device as that term

is defined in Section 2{h), 7 U.S.C. 136(h).

-

4. The Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act does
not require that pesticide devices be pre-market tested for efficacy or

safety (7. 31}.
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5. wonty's claims and represents by a brociure distributed at
a livestock ;how on February 25, 15?9 tnat the target pests (to be con-
trolled) do not have to come in direct contact witn iis devite whose
effective range is up to 150 feet radius (Complainant Exnibit 2) and that
said device creates a magnetic field which treates nervous disor@entation

in certain lower animals and insects and thereby brings about their death

(Complainant Exnibit 2, page 4).

6. On another Rrocnure (Monty's Exaibit 8; T. 70), dated 1979,
Monty's claims and represents that said device "controls rats and mice
infestation continually without poisons" and “creates nervous disorienta-
tation in rats and mice and thereby brings about tieir continued elimination

in tne affected area".

7. At tihe request of the US EPA, tae Hational Bureau of
Standards (i8S} Center for Consumer Product Tecanology, evailuated eight
modz1s of electromagnetic pest controllers to characterize any detectable
electromagnetic output (as opposed to biological testing done by others).

Visual and X-ray inspection and elzctromagnetic mieasurements

showed the units can be grouped into two categories based on character-
istics of the output signal--the principal cnaracteristics being either o
pulse output or a 60 Hz ac output. For the pu]se output device, no
significant external EMF was found. The 60 Hz units wera found to generate
detectable magnetic fields.

NBS was also requested to determine if modeis have any commonalty
of their outputs which would allow grouping or classifying of similar
units for biological testing: and determine the feasibility of daveloping
a standard test method for classifying units based on tihe nature of the

oﬁtput. A report issued March 1379 (Complainant Exhibit 9) demonstrate

that their efforts were directed to complying with US EPA's request.
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8. The Eliminator pest control device (EPA Sample Ko. 130198)

manufactured by Honty's was the subject of a limited examination by the
4BS in Wasaington, D.C. on or about May 9, 1979, consisting of a laboratory
test for any 60 Hz electromagnetic field from the unit. o such signifi-
cant EMF was detected, but it was determined to be a pulse outpqt device,

hereinafter referred to as tne Pulse Group, or as Group One {T. 107)}.

9. Said examination, above, further consisted of removal of tae
back of the unit for ivternal examination by noting visually the integrated

circuit components. .

10. The components noted in "Tne Eliminator" (EPA Sample 150198)
vare identified as tne sameJnumber and type as those contaiped in the
tiagna-Pulse and datuve Shield pest control devices (T. 133) which, with
wTne Eliminator*, were classified as pulse operating davices {pulse group)
“(T. 105 and 105) or Group One (T. 107). Tie Elfminetor is a 9-volt Unit,
| drawing from a cenverter that converts from 115 volts, o Hz to 9 volts.
Tae ilature Siield and iHagna-Puise were battery oparaied {dec) units, 12 volt

gupp1y.

11. Though the subject Eliminator, tested by #BS, nad only a
single load coil, whe%e the Magna-Pulse and Nature Shield had three lcad
coils, all three units contained the same number of components and tie
detected output--pulses--was in the same order of magnitude (T. 133),
j.e., each produced practically identical magnetic fields of a Tow level”

in the 1/10th gauss range, at a distance of six inches from the unit {T.

122).

12. Tie field strength of eacn of the subject devices in the
pulse group decreased rapidly witn distance from the unit. At a distance
of six inches, tia EifF is approximately 0.1 gauss, wmuch less tnan tne

earth’'s field which approximates 0.5 gauss.
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13. NBS visually inspected the components of Tne Eliminator and
tnerefore it was not necessary to 'use X-ray. Components of the hagna-
Pulse and Nature Shield units were X-rayed bacause tineir ccnponents were
- encased in metal containers and potted in potting compound; tous their
visual inspection without the use of X-ray would have requirad dastruction

of the circuitry.

14. Biological testing, using the Nature Shield {Official Sample
Ho. 131918} and two iHagna-Pulse units (Official Sample Ho. 131919) were =
conducted as hereinbef&?e described, supra, page 6, using control (gntreated)
or unexposed) groups and test (exposed to EMF{ groups, indicated that said
units and the ENMF by tnem produced are ineffective in controiling rodents,

and, particularly, that said units are:

a. ineffective in producing mortality;

y b. ineffective in adversely altering feading,
drinking and otier benavior;

c. inzffectiva in preventing fuomale rocentis
from conceiving and reproducing.
Further, said testis warranted tie conclusion tnat tie devices, functioning
and in good working order, do not in any way live up to claims of tneir
manufacturers and distributors of providing control of rodants or insects

(Complainant Exhioits 11, 12, and 13).

15. Rodents and insects are short-lived and it is not unusual
for them to die in both test and conircl groups for unexplainable reasons

(Complainant Exhibit 11, p. &; Exhibit 12, p. 5; and Exnibit 13, p. 18).

COJCLUSIGHS OF LAY

* 1. "The €liminator" produced by Fonty's is a device as that

tern is defined by Section 2{ih), 7 U.S.C. 135{nh).
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Z. The biological testing done on the EMF devices, Majna-Pulse
and hature 5dield, wnich, with "The Elimninator™, were classified as devices
(a) having the same nuuber and type of components; (b) having a pulse
output (EMF) of the same magnitude, and {c) which produce magnetic fields
that are of a low level, in the tenth gauss (0.] gauss} range, is deter-

minative of the efficacy of "The Eliminator™ in the control of rats, mice,

" .roaches and silverfish; and whether it affords an effective control of

pests generally. \ .

3. On the basis of the evidence and on the facts found herein,

The Eliminator is a device that is ineffective when used to trap, destroy,

repel or mitigate rats, mice, roaches and other target pests._

4. HMonty's product, "The Eliminator", is misoranded in that
its labeling {Monty‘s Exnibit B) bears statements and graphic representa-
tions whicit are false and misleading. Complainant Exhibit 2, p. 3 and 4,
a brochure distributed at a 1ifestock show, while technically not labeling,
is relevant to the salient issue herein and can propecly oe considered in
deterwining the meaning of language in Monty's representation appearing

on said labeling.

6. Honty's, wnen it distributed, sold, offered for sale, held
for sale or offered to deliver "The Eliminator" violated Section 12{a)(1)(F)
of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act, as amended,

(7 u.s.c. 1365(a}(1)(F)).

6. For its violation of FIFRA, Monty's should be subject to

and it is hereinbelow assessed, an appropriate civil penalty.

7. By reason of facts found and the conclusions reached nerein

-

as to the inefficacy of Monty's product "The Eliminator®, it is further

concluded, held and adjudged, that tie Stop Sale, Use and Removal QOrder,
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dated June 13, 1979 {Complainant Exhibit 4) was validly issued (Section

" 13, FIFRAY and should not be disturbed.

DISCUSSIOL

e - ol

The parties agree that the sole or core issue to be determined
35 whether subject device is effective, as represented by Monty's, for

the destruction or cantrol of rodents or other pests.

Respondent insists lhat Complainant has failed in its proof
because it has not (biologically) tested Monty's rodent control device
(so as to provide direct proof of its efficacy). It characterizes the

tests of WBS, testified to by Mr. Charles Gordon, as follows:

"The Government, by its own principles of
classification, has determined for itsalf simply
that "The Eliminator" fits into the category of
electromagnetic control devices, and that, since
two devices otner than Tne Eliminator, and which
have peen simitarly classified, were tested for
their effects on rodants by professionals at tne
Unjversity of California atl Davis and found wanting,
The Eliminator must be found wanting aiso,”

Respondent correctly states ©

e basis on whicit tue determina-

tion was made, but then seeks 10

make that basis suspect by suggesting

that KBS indicated differences

whetween the electromagnetic properties

and capabilities of The Eliminator” and the otner devices.

With this contention I do not agree. Mr. Gordon testified

that the three devices:

(1) were tested and determined to be in the pulse group
{group one) (T. 106);

. (2) nave the same number and type of components (T. 107}

{3) have an EMR output--pulses--in the same order of magni-

tude--that, when measured at a finite distance awey {(six inciies) tiey
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produce magnetic fields that are of a low level, in the tenth gauss

{0.1 gauss).range (1. 122).

Wr. Gordon further testified that the components found in the
three devices were not sophisticated, and could be obtained in the market
place, Respondent’s contention places unwarranted emphasis on the state-

~ meat that some variation can exist between the respective units in their
pulse-field output because the components used are commonly plus or minus
20 percent in accuracy. Khe testimony stresses that all are in tne same'
order of magnitude -- "I mean if it (fie]d-deﬁected at six inches) s
0.1 gauss, the otner won't be 0.5 or 1 gauss.” It is apparent that said
testimony of a "variance" in the pulse-field output of 0.1 gauss (1/5 of
the EMF of the earth) is not indicative of a "difference” in the devices.
Further, said testimony establishes that the field strength decreases
rapidly with distance from the unit. If the di#tance is increased ta
20 times {10 feet) the field is decreased to 1/B000 of that existing at
six inches (T. 112}. When the distance is increased to 150 feet {the
radius within which Respondent claims efficacy for his device) it is
obvious that though a variance, if present, persists, even to the extent
suggested, the similarity is so substantial that no actual difference is
discernable. - {See Lever Bros, v Atlas Assur. Co., 131 F.29 770 1.c.
777{11) (CA 7, 1942)),

Or. Howard undertook the biological testing of the other pulse
group devices (iMagna-Pulse and Nature Shield)} for US EPA, His under-
taking, as outlined supra, pages 6 and 7, was with the restriction “as
long as we could devote our research to testing the principle and the

concept” (T. 144), He further stated:

"...we Tearned, in the ultrasonic devices to test

the principle and tne concept and then all of the

nes devices will fall into the same general category,
and you do not have to repeat the expensive and time-
consuming laboratory work...".
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It then became apparent tirat proof of the inefficacy of other and
further deviges would be based on circunstantial evidence as in the
instant case, Once biological testing determinad the cffect and capa-
bilities of electromagnetic devices of the categories tested, the .
principle and concept enunciated by a biological test on one or more of
the devices of a particular class or category is controlling as to the

- efficacy or inefficacy of all such devices so categorized. Tihe function
of NGBS was to perform tests to determine only the classification category,

or group, of a subject device. As evidenced by Dr. Howard's reports

{Complainant Exhibits 11 and 12}, his biological testing was objectively

carried out under very controlied conditions with the ccnclusion that the
two devices tested,lhnd any electromagnatic davice) “cannot effectively
control radsnts in a wargnouse, in a house, or in fields®; tnat any such
device is worthless for control of rodents {T. 152). ‘

In consideration aof tiie biolegical firdings presented and tlie
further tests of NiS classifying the Climinator (based on its emissions
1. 34} in the same grouping as tinz test devices, it follows that any
conclusions reachaed as to inefficacy of the Magna-Pulse and Hature Siield

are equally applicable to “The Eliminator".

"Circumstantial evidence" is evidence which, without going
directly to prove the existence of a fact, give rise to a logical inference
that such fact does exist. Facts in issue may be proved either by
"direct" evidence or “"indirect® {circumstantial) evidence, (See United

Textile Workers of Amer, AFL-CIQ v Wewberry Mills, Inc., 238 FS 366,

T.c. 372 (WDSC 1965}).

In order to establish the existence of fact, direct evidence
is not required. Circumstantial evidence is not only sufficient, but

in some instances may be more certain and satisfying and nore persuasive

I ———————
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than direct evidence. (Rogers v Mo.Pac. R. Co., 352 US 500 77 S.Ct

443, 1.c. 449, note 17 (1957); Wichalic v Cleveland Tankers, lnc,, 3

Us 325, 81 s.ct. 6, 1.c. 11(5) (1960)).

On this record I find Dr, Clifford Sherry's tests (descri}
Supra, pages 8 and 9) to be inconclusive as to the efficacy of the s

devices tested by him (T. 101 and 169). I have also considered the

testimonials presgnted by Monty's as Monty's Exhibits D, E, F, G, an
As previously observed, supra, page 9 hereof, an absence or mitigati
' of the target pests, without more, is there reported. Little weight
any, can be accorded tais evidence, as no explanation for such obsery
is presentied other than the presumption arising from the presence of
subject device. This presumption is amply rebutted in this record by
showing of the inafficacy of subject device and Vike devices emitting
electromagnetic radiation (EMR), Additionally, | find that the abate
‘noted in sucil testimony can possibly be attributed io many causes oth
Y ~ than EMR, such as the seasonal population fluctuation (T. 158), the s
‘ a duration of tie life of such pests (T. 150) and the facts present or
1mp11c1t in the record that chemical pesticides were in fact previous

appl1ed in many, if not all,of the premises described.

CIVIL PENALTY

: : In determining the amount of the penalty to be assessed, Se:
- 14{a)(3) of the Statute (7 U.5.C.1361(a}(3)) requires that there shal;
considered the appropriateness of the penalty to the size of Responder
business, the effect on Respondent's ability to continue in business a
the gravity of the violation, Section 168.60(b) of tie Rules of Pract
provides that in evaluating the gravity of the violation tiere also be
considered Respondant's history of compliance witi the Act and any evi.

of good faith or tack tiercof. The Rules of Practice furtier provide,



- 18 =~

Section 168.46(b), that "the Administrative Law Judge may at his

discretion’ increase or decrease tne assessed penalty from the amount

proposed in the Complaint".

-

In tae instant vecord, one of the preliminary matters raised
prior to hearing was the announcement that a stipulation by the Complainant
. (who offered an amendment to the instant complaint reducing tne proposed
penalty sought tierein from $2,475.00 to $1,250.00) and the Respondent
to the effect tnat the appropriate penalty for a Category II violator

{under the guidelines) is $1,250.00. . ’

I have considerad the Statute and the Regulations pertinent
hereto, and find that the penaity stipulated to, in tne event the viola-
tion is found to have occurred as charged, is not inappropriate ar
unreasaonable, Having further considered the entire record and based on
}he Findings of Fact and Conclusions herein, I propose that a civii

penalty in the sum of 51,250.00 be assessad against tue Respondent.

This Initial Decision and the following proposed Final Order
assessing a civil penalty shall become the Final Order of tie Regionai
Adoinistrator unless appealed or reviewed by the Regional Administrator

as provided in 40 CFR 158.46(c):
"FIHAL ORDER

Pursuant to Section 14{a){1) of the Federal Insecticide,
Fungicide and Rodenticide Act, as amended (7 U.S.C. 1381(A)(1}, a civil
penalty of $1,250.00 is assessed against Respondent Monty's Environmantal
Services, Inc., for violations of said Act whicii have been establisned on
the basis of Complaint issued herein, and Respondent is ordered to pay
same by Cashier's or Certified Check, payable to the United States

Treasury, within sixty (60} days of the receipt of this order; it is
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further ordered tnat the Stop Sale, Use and Removal Order dated June 13,
1979 (Complainant Exhibit 4) sha]f remain in full force and effect."
. s e . =/
This Initia) Decision is signed and filed this 22— day of

December, 1979, in Kansas City, Missouri.

'




